Town of Russell 35900 State Highway 13 Bayfield, Wisconsin54814 (715) 779-5338

E-mail townofrussell@centurytel.net

Website www.townofrussell.org

Paul "Rocky" Tribovich Chair Judy Meierotto Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Dave Good Clerk/Treasurer

JOINT PLAN COMMISSION – SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING 6:00 p.m. – Monday, September 12, 2016 Town Garage - 35900 State Highway 13

Any person wishing to attend who, because of a disability, requires special accommodations, should contact the Town Clerk at 715 779-5338, at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting time, so appropriate arrangements can be made.

- 1. Call to order and roll call by Plan Commission and Town Board Chairs.
- 2. Pledge of Allegiance.
- 3. Approval of the agenda.
- 4. Set Agenda for Public Input now or at the end of the agenda (3-minute limit per person-15 minutes maximum).

NEW BUSINESS

- 5. Commissioners, Board members and public travel to Boulder Point property west of the Town Garage.
- 6. Presentation by Wayne Nelson and his representatives regarding proposed development plans for a portion to this property ****.
- 7. Q&A with Commission and Town Board on proposed development.
- 8. Items for next Plan Commission and Town Board meetings.
- 9. Set next meeting dates, time and location.
- 10. Adjourn Plan Commission and Special Town Board Meeting at Boulder Point site.

The Commission/Board reserves the right to take action on any agenda item. **** indicates items attached. Posted August 31, 2016 at 4:00 p.m.

Dave Good–Clerk/Treasurer

Hello,

Wayne asked me to share some information with you = town board and planning commission members - in case this could be helpful and address some questions. MIRKA

Building A Backyard Airstrip

Posted on October 2, 2014 by mwflyer

by Hal Davis WisDOT Bureau of Aeronautics

How many landing facilities would you guess there are in Wisconsin? If you guessed "a lot," you would be right! In all, Wisconsin has well over 700 separate landing facilities, and more than half of those are private-use airstrips.

Many pilots, including me, dream of being able to walk out my back door and take to the skies from my own private airstrip. While I may be a long way from realizing this dream, many pilots in our state already have. Aside from the means of flight and an adequate piece of real estate, all it takes is a phone call to the Wisconsin Bureau of Aeronautics (BOA) to get the approval process rolling.

There are two separate, but related, approval processes that must be completed in order to establish a private airport in Wisconsin. Fortunately, BOA is a "one-stop-shop" for all your airstrip approval needs. On the federal level, FAR Part 157 establishes standards and notification requirements for anyone proposing to construct, alter, or deactivate an airport. Similarly, Chapter 114.134 of the Wisconsin state statutes establishes a statewide approval requirement for all new airports.

At this point you might be asking yourself, "What constitutes an airport?"

In Wisconsin, an airport is any area of land or water which is used, or intended for use, for the landing and takeoff of aircraft. In other words, any area used for takeoff or landing is an airport regardless of its size, location or type of aircraft. That means all private airstrips are considered airports and, consequently, must be approved. An alternative perspective is that anyone who takes off or lands an aircraft in Wisconsin is required to do so from an approved airport as the mere action of using a site for landing or takeoff establishes it as an airport under Wisconsin law.

Wisconsin State Statute Chapter 114.134 prohibits the establishment of new airports without a certificate of approval for the location, thereby prohibiting anyone from operating an aircraft at an unapproved airstrip, helipad, etc. While FAR Part 157 accounts for temporary landing facilities, it's important to note that Wisconsin law makes no such distinction.

Before contacting BOA to start the approval process, it goes without saying that you should probably make sure your property is suitable for an airstrip. Depending on the size and shape of your property, you may only have one or two options for locating the runway. Runway dimensions will depend on your aircraft's performance. Neither the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) nor BOA publish standards for runway dimensions; however, in Wisconsin, other airport standards do exist. Specifically, your runway threshold must be a minimum distance from public roads and railroads. For a more detailed discussion of these standards, reference the *Wisconsin Airport Standards* document available on our web site or available through the mail upon request. Finally, in addition to runway dimensions, be sure to take into consideration other factors like prevailing winds and terrain when planning your runway.

At this point, you will also need to decide if your airstrip will be made available to other pilots. In Wisconsin, you can designate an airport as "personal" meaning only you will use the airstrip; "private" meaning other pilots will be able to use the airstrip with your permission, or "public" meaning anyone can use the airstrip. How you designate your airport may affect safety standards, publication on charts, insurance and compliance with local ordinances.

Once you have chosen the location for your new airstrip, it's time to begin the paperwork. The good news is that both the federal and state processes are free, and once the approval process is complete, neither BOA nor FAA will ever come out to inspect your airstrip unless the general public is involved somehow.

We strongly recommend contacting BOA prior to beginning the paperwork, but the required forms are also available on our web site. They include the Wisconsin Application for Site Approval and FAA Form 7480-1: Notice of Proposed Landing Area.

You may notice the two forms ask for similar information. Fortunately, free mapping web sites have made obtaining information like geographic coordinates and distances much easier in recent years.

As part of the Wisconsin site approval application, you will be asked to provide a U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) quadrangle map depicting the outline of each runway. To help, BOA will send you a copy of the appropriate USGS quadrangle map upon request.

After completing the two forms, send them both to our office. We will forward FAA Form 7480-1 to the FAA for analysis. On our end, BOA will ensure your airstrip meets state standards. If it does, your proposal will be sent to your county, municipality and any existing airport owner within 10 NM of your airport site for comment. We suggest contacting your county and local municipal government for applicable ordinances, laws or regulations concerning your proposal early on in this process. Local ordinances vary greatly, and this oftentimes can be your greatest hurdle in the establishment of your airport.

For example, some airstrips may require zoning adjustments, conditional-use permits or other stipulated conditions concerning the operation of your airport in order to be approved locally. BOA is willing to help resolve problems encountered with local zoning offices if needed. Often the issuance of these permits will depend on your neighbors and whether or not they object to your proposed airstrip. It may be a good idea to meet individually with each neighbor, brief them on your intentions, and address any concerns prior to applying for a permit with the local zoning authority.

Final state approval for your airstrip is contingent on a favorable FAA determination in addition to the resolution of all local concerns regarding your proposal. Once those conditions are met, BOA will issue you a certificate of approval for your airstrip. The process takes a minimum of two months to complete.

For more information and links to Wisconsin Airport Standards, Application for Site Approval, and FAA Form 7480-1: Notice of Proposed Landing Area, visit: <u>www.dot.wisconsin.gov/travel/air/airport-ops.htm</u>

For questions, or to begin the approval process, contact Mark Pfundheller at 608-267-5272 or<u>Mark.Pfundheller@dot.wi.gov</u>.